
Transportation Partnership and Cooperation 
Clayton, Concord, Martinez, Pleasant Hill, Walnut Creek, and Contra Costa County 

2300 Contra Costa Boulevard, Suite 110 - Pleasant Hill, CA  94523 
(925) 969-0841    FAX (925) 969-9135 

 

TRANSPAC Transportation Partnership and Cooperation 
Clayton, Concord, Martinez, Pleasant Hill, Walnut Creek, and Contra Costa County 

2300 Contra Costa Boulevard, Suite 110 – Pleasant Hill, CA  94523    (925) 969-0841    FAX (925) 969-9135 
 

 
TRANSPAC TAC MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2015 
9:00 A.M. to 11:00 A.M. 

In the COMMUNITY ROOM at City of Pleasant Hill City Hall 
100 GREGORY LANE 

PLEASANT HILL 
 

Meeting will be hosted by the City of Pleasant Hill 
 
1. Review/Revise Accept/Minutes of the June 25, 2015 TAC Meeting 
 
Attachment:  Minutes of the TAC meeting on June 25, 2015. 
 
2. Update on the I-680/SR-4 Phase 3 Project.  Contra Costa Transportation Authority 

(CCTA) staff will provide an update on the status of the I-680/SR-4 Phase 3 Project.  
(Susan Miller, CCTA Director of Projects) 

 
Attachment:  A visual presentation and handouts will be provided at the meeting. 
 
3. The 511 Contra Costa TDM Program is seeking approval and authorization from 

TRANSPAC to execute a Master Cooperative Agreement between TRANSPAC/City 
of Pleasant Hill, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), and the 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority for the FY 2016/17 TRANSPAC/ 
TRANSPLAN 511 Contra Costa Program, with 2016/17 funding allocations from the 
BAAQMD Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) and CCTA Measure J (Line 
17 and 21a).  

 
ACTION:  Recommend approval and authorization by the TRANSPAC Board.  
 
Attachment:  511 Contra Costa Workplan and Budget for Fiscal Year 2016/17. 
 
4. Continued Discussion of the Budget and the Maintenance of the Pacheco Transit Hub.  

The Pacheco Transit Hub has been open since August 2013.  The facility is comprised of 
a park and ride lot and bus transit hub area.  Charging stations were installed at the request 
of TRANSPAC. 



TRANSPAC Agenda                                     Page 2 of 2                                                       September 24, 2015 
   
 
 

The City of Martinez agreed to be the Project Manager both in the bidding and construction 
phase and after construction.  TRANSPAC has made a commitment to fund 50 percent of 
the maintenance cost, up to $10,000.  The remaining funding was to come from 
TRANSPLAN and the transit agencies (25 percent up to $5,000).  Martinez has submitted 
an invoice to CCTA for maintenance and utility costs.  The City of Martinez requests 
TRANSPAC allocate funds to pay its fair share of maintenance costs.  The total cost for 
maintenance last fiscal year was $11,813.39.  TRANSPAC’s share is $5,906.60.  With 
increased use of the charging stations it is anticipated electricity costs to increase 
significantly next year.   (Continued from the Special TAC Meeting on June 4, 2015). 

 
Attachments:  Year to Date TRANSPAC Budget Totals; City of Martinez memo dated September 
17, 2015; and Letter dated August 18, 2015 to Susan Miller, Director, Projects from Tim Tucker, 
City Engineer, City of Martinez, Re FY 2014-15 Pacheco Transit Hub Maintenance w/Summary 
of Project Expenses, City YTD Budget Reports, POs, Checks, and Invoices. (Letter Electronic 
only). 
 
5. Line 20a Grant Issues:   

 
a. Distribution of DRAFT Program Documents.  At the September 10, 2015 

meeting of the TRANSPAC Board, the Board authorized the TAC to distribute the 
Draft Line 20a (Additional Transportation Services for Seniors and People with 
Disabilities) Call for Projects to interested parties for review and comment, and 
considered and supported the input from the TAC to “cast a wide net” in getting 
feedback on the program.  The Board also authorized disbursement of Line 20a 
grant funding to four existing Line 20a recipients.  
 

b. Review and Approval of City of Walnut Creek Line 20a Grant Funding. 
 
Attachments:  Memo dated September 15, 2015 from John Cunningham, Principal Planner, 
Contra Costa County Department of Conservation & Development. 
 
6. Discussion:  Regional Transportation Planning Committee Structure.  At the 

TRANSPAC Board meeting on September 10, 2015, the Board requested that the TAC 
examine different committee structures and provide feedback to the Board.  This request 
was a result of the dialog regarding the transitional phase of the Committee after the 
departure of the Executive Director and other organizational changes. 

 
Attachment:  Memo dated September 15, 2015 from John Cunningham, Principal Planner, Contra 
Costa County Department of Conservation & Development. 
 
7. The next meeting, to be hosted by The City of Martinez, is scheduled for October 22, 

2015 at 9:00 A.M. in the Community Room at Pleasant Hill City Hall unless otherwise 
determined. 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 1 
 

TRANSPAC Technical Advisory Commission (TAC) Meeting Summary Minutes 
 
MEETING DATE:    June 25, 2015 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: John Cunningham, Contra Costa County; Corinne Dutra-

Roberts, 511 Contra Costa; Mindy Gentry, Clayton; Eric Hu, 
Pleasant Hill; Ray Kuzbari, Concord; Jeremy Lochirco, Walnut 
Creek; Anne Muzzini, County Connection; Lynn Overcashier, 
511 Contra Costa; Michael Tanner, BART; Tim Tucker, 
Martinez  

 
GUESTS/PRESENTERS: Ethan Cordes, 511 Contra Costa MTC Summer Intern; 

Stephanie Hu, Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
(CCTA); Mario Moreno, Pleasant Hill City Engineer; Hisham 
Noeimi, Engineering Manager, CCTA; Leona Gee, 511 Contra 
Costa  

  
MINUTES PREPARED BY: Anita Tucci-Smith 
 
The meeting, hosted by Eric Hu, City of Pleasant Hill, convened at 9:00 A.M.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
1. Review/Revise/Accept Minutes of the June 4, 2015 TAC Meeting 
 
M/S/U Kuzbari/Cunningham, to approve the minutes of the June 4, 2015 meeting, as submitted. 
 
2. 2017 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Call for Projects:  At its special meeting on June 4, 

2015, the TAC had considered the RTP and the need to develop a 24-year financially-
constrained project list for submittal to MTC no later than July 24, 2015.  The TAC is expected to 
refine a project list at this meeting for submittal to the TRANSPAC Board for approval at its 
meeting on July 9, 2015.  Information to be provided by CCTA Staff and/or TAC members at the 
meeting.  (Hisham Noeimi - CCTA Staff)  

 
Hisham Noeimi, Engineering Manager, CCTA, thanked TAC Members for the input to the RTP.  He 
explained that the RTP was updated by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) every four 
years.  To be able to seek federal and state funds, a project had to be in the Committed or Financially 
Constrained List of the RTP.  For the Financially Constrained List, the cost of all projects and programs 
in the RTP could not exceed the amount of funding expected over the 24-year life of the RTP, 2017 
through 2042.  For TRANSPAC, that meant $628 million.  Any project expected to be locally funded, or 
if there was a full funding plan and with environmental clearance, could be on the Committed List.  
Those projects that did not fit under either list would go into the Vision List, which represented a 
backup list of projects.  Once the lists had been developed and accepted, information would have to be 
submitted regarding scope, cost, design, environmental, and the like. 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 2 
 

Mr. Noeimi advised that the lists had been modified to delete several projects that had been 
constructed or were no longer supported.  He did not think that any new projects had been added to 
the Committed List although some projects were moved from the Constrained List to the Committed 
List.   He highlighted the changes that had been made to the Committed List. 
 
For the Financially Constrained List, Mr. Noeimi recommended a project by project review, as follows: 
 
Michael Tanner offered the following changes to the BART projects, with no change in cost: 
 

• To No. 0 on the Financially Constrained List of Projects, change reference to all stations; 
• No. 21, eliminate the Concord BART Station Modernization since it is part of a programmatic 

category. 
 
On the continued discussion of the Financially Constrained List: 
 

• No. 2, Mr. Noeimi stated that I-680/State Route 4 Interchange Improvements were very costly, 
and while Phase 3 (2c) currently had some funding, there was no funding for Phase 1 (2a), or 
Phase 2 (2b).  The project had been in the RTP for some time and would be kept on the list. 

   
• No. 3, Construct HOV lanes on I-680 southbound had been moved to the Committed List given 

that it was now fully funded. 
 

• No. 4, Construct SR 242 on and off ramps, the estimate had been updated and the project was 
in the environmental review stage. 

 
• No. 5, Reconstruct Route 4/Willow Pass Road had been folded into an operational 

improvement project down the list. 
  

• No. 6, Construct Martinez Intermodal Station had kept the $16 million as a placeholder.  (Tim 
Tucker stated the description was still accurate and Mr. Noeimi asked Mr. Tucker to verify the 
$16 million shortfall.) 

 
• No. 7, Widen Pacheco Boulevard, was left as is. 

 
• No. 8, Waterworld Parkway Bridge was no longer supported and was deleted.  
 

Mr. Noeimi identified several new projects submitted by the City of Concord and stated that all 
appeared to be capacity increasing.   
 
Of those projects, Ray Kuzbari explained that three were Complete Streets projects, and one had to go 
through Eminent Domain.  Another of the new projects was for a 10-foot wide paved pedestrian/bike 
trail through Lime Ridge Open Space Preserve from Cowell Road to Contra Costa Canal Trail/Ygnacio 
Canal Trail.  He presented the Lime Ridge Open Space Trail Study, an initial feasibility study on that 
proposal, and stated the trail was primarily in Concord although a part would be in Walnut Creek.   



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 3 
 

Jeremy Lochirco suggested that most of the trail was in Walnut Creek open space area.  The City of 
Walnut Creek had concerns for the trail and did not support the inclusion of the proposal in the plan 
given the need for a broader discussion.  He added there were policy implications given that some 
recommendations, such as the maintenance of the pathway, would have a financial impact on Walnut 
Creek. 
 
When asked by Mr. Noeimi if the project was expected to be developed within the next four years, Mr. 
Kuzbari stated it could be started next year if there was money for project development where a full 
feasibility study could be started.   
 
Mr. Noeimi suggested having the broad programmatic category for pedestrian/bike improvements 
would allow the sponsors to go after state and federal funds if they were ready and recommended not 
listing the project individually until the project had been vetted with all stakeholders.     
 
Mr. Lochirco was fine with the catchall but wanted to be clear that any study involving multiple 
jurisdictions should involve all those jurisdictions as part of the process.   
 
Mario Moreno asked Mr. Noeimi to clarify the catchall pedestrian/bicycle category, and Mr. Noeimi 
explained that it was a category in Measure J to capture undefined regional bike/ped projects.  He 
noted that MTC wanted all bike/ped projects (<1/4 mile) to be aggregated into a general category since 
they could not be modeled.  When pursuing federal and state funds, the RTP identification for the 
category would have to be provided.  The category would be 21225, and through the Transportation 
Improvement Program process, MTC would start charging the project ID, add up the fund sources, and 
there would only be a problem if costs exceeded $97 million.   
 

• No. 9, Improvements along Contra Costa Boulevard.  Eric Hu reported that No. 9 was a catchall 
project for Contra Costa Boulevard, although over the years it had been broken down to seven 
phases to make it easier to secure funding instead of conducting a massive project.  One of the 
phases, also shown as No. 9, was in the area of Viking Drive.  A portion of that project at the 
intersection of Taylor Boulevard was in Concord.  Pleasant Hill was currently working on the 
layout of that intersection, and when done Pleasant Hill would contact Concord. 
 

• No. 9a, Pleasant Hill Road, a Complete Streets enhancement between Gregory Lane and Taylor 
Boulevard. 

 
• No. 10, a Contra Costa County project for a northbound truck climbing lane, which had been on 

the books for some time, would be retained.  Some State Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP) funds had been programmed for the project.  
 

• No. 11, Adding a second southbound Alhambra Avenue lane was a Martinez project.  Mr. 
Tucker stated the project had been designed and funding was needed.  It was part of the 
Alhambra Avenue Widening Project that did not have sufficient funding.  (Mr. Noeimi asked Mr. 
Tucker to verify the estimate for that project.) 
 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 4 
 

• No. 12, Alhambra Avenue straightening was described as the bigger of the Alhambra Avenue 
projects. 
 

• No. 13, Mr. Noeimi asked if the Improvements for Walnut Creek BART Transit Oriented 
Development (TOD) were on BART property.  Mr. Tanner stated that BART had not secured a 
schedule for the developer, and $22 million had already been committed through the 
development.  It was agreed the project was part of the BART countywide programmatic 
category. 
 

• No. 14, related to County Connection bus equipment and infrastructure had been deleted at 
the request of County Connection. 
 

• No. 15, a County Connection project related to the replacement of the existing diesel trolley 
fleet, had been moved to the Committed List. 
 

• No. 16, I-680/SR4 Phase 4 southbound to eastbound;  
No. 17, I-680/SR4 Phase 5 westbound to northbound; 
No. 17, I-680/SR4 HOV Flyover; all three had been moved to the Vision List to make room for 
other projects.  Mr. Noeimi stated if added in the Financially Constrained List, they would take 
more than half of TRANSPAC’s share of projected revenue.   

 
• No. 18, Mr. Noeimi stated the I-680 Northbound HOV Lane Extension was a priority project that 

would be retained.   
 

• No. 61, a County Connection project related to the replacement of the existing diesel trolley 
was a repeat project that had been moved to the Committed List.   
 

• No. 19, SR4 additional westbound mixed flow lane; 
No. 20, SR4 additional eastbound mixed flow lane.  Both were highway operational 
improvement projects currently under construction; both had been aligned and the estimates 
had been updated. 
 

Stephanie Hu reported that a placeholder had identified smaller phases of the SR4 Operational 
Improvements.  Eastbound:  Replacing acceleration lane/lane drop at Port Chicago Highway on ramp to 
create auxiliary lane from Port Chicago Highway on ramp to Willow Pass Road off ramp.  Westbound:  
Extend existing auxiliary lane to create a continuous auxiliary lane between Willow Pass Road on ramp 
to Port Chicago Highway off ramp.  Create a second auxiliary lane from Willow Pass Road on ramp to 
Port Chicago Highway off ramp.  Replace exit-only lane to exit-or-through lane at SR 242 exit.   
 
Mr. Kuzbari liked what had been shown westbound and suggested it was important to do the same in 
the eastbound direction as well given that the auxiliary lane could go through the entire interchange to 
tie through the one additional lane to San Marco.   
 
 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 5 
 

Mr. Noeimi suggested that another $50 million project could be squeezed in and he would see what 
could fit. 
 
Mr. Kuzbari did not want to show another phase but update the description to reflect the two auxiliary 
lanes, which he stated were needed. 
 
John Cunningham explained with respect to the budget that no local dollars had been shown, and in 
the planning process for the Concord Naval Weapons Station (CNWS) there would be a fee program 
and this was one of the projects that could receive fees.  While it was too early to know what those 
fees might be, he suggested that would help ensure that conversation would take place when 
appropriate.   
 
Mr. Kuzbari stated that no local funds had been shown because an AB 1600 study had not yet been 
prepared.   He emphasized that the fair share cost on the developer side would be thoroughly 
analyzed. 
 
With respect to the Vision List, Mr. Noeimi stated there would be no constraint to funding requests.   
 

• No. 1, Mr. Noeimi stated this category was a catchall. 
 

• No. 2, carried over transit corridor improvements.   
 

Mr. Noeimi noted that the CCTA was doing a study on the I-680 Corridor and potentially some portion 
of it needed to be moved to the Financially Constrained List.  He added that the CCTA was doing 
Integrated Corridor Mobility (ICM) work on Highway 4 and some money might be put on the Financially 
Constrained List for that project as well.  He noted that if adding the $50 million for operational 
improvements they would be at capacity.  He would go through the list to see if something else would 
need to be moved.   
 

• No. 3, Express bus service.  Mr. Noeimi stated that Nos. 2 and 3 had been submitted by 
previous RTPCs. 

 
Mr. Noeimi identified the next three placeholders as projects related to I-680/SR4, which had been 
removed from the Financially Constrained List. 
 
Mr. Kuzbari requested a modification to the description to create and/or extend auxiliary lanes to 
Willow Pass Road and requested a reference to Willow Pass Road west to avoid confusion with Willow 
Pass Road east.   
 

• No. 5, Alhambra Avenue Widening (Phase 3).   
 
Mr. Noeimi explained that the project had been placed on the Financially Constrained List, 
although Mr. Tucker stated that the project extended from Willow Pass Road to Alhambra Valley 
Road.  (Mr. Noeimi asked Mr. Tucker to send him the descriptions.) 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 6 
 

• No. 6, Improve I-680/Marina Vista Interchange, had been deleted. 
 

• No. 7, SR4/Port Chicago Highway Interchange Improvements, were no longer supported and 
had been deleted. 
 

• No. 8, Kirker Pass Road Truck Climbing Lanes southbound was identified as a County project. 
 

• Mr. Noeimi identified a new project, San Miguel Drive Pedestrian/Bicycle Improvements, and 
suggested the County may want to include that project in the programmatic category.  He 
recommended that it be deleted, and stated it would not impede the County from going after 
state funds.   
 

• No. 9, Mr. Noeimi stated that Construct Court Street Overcrossing could be deleted. 
 
• Mr. Noeimi identified another new project, Increase bus service frequency to BART stations, 

which had been added by County Connection. 
 
• No. 9a, Mr. Noeimi stated that Gregory Lane Complete Streets was fine as is.   

 
• No. 14, Mr. Noeimi stated had been covered as part of State Route 4 Operations.   

 
• No. 10, Expansion Vehicles for BART; 

No. 11, Security for BART; 
No. 12, BART System Capacity; 
No. 13, Station Capacity Expansion; and 
No. 14, Station Access; all would be retained. 
 

• The next five projects, all new, had been submitted by the City of Walnut Creek related to 
Newell Bridge widening, North Main Street Bridge replacement, Olympic Boulevard widening, 
Ygnacio Valley Road rehabilitation, and Ygnacio Valley Road and Treat Boulevard Corridor 
System Management. 

 
Mr. Lochirco stated the projects had all been envisioned to be near term and he would like them to be 
placed on the Financially Constrained List. 
 
On a review of the five new Walnut Creek projects, Mr. Noeimi stated that Ygnacio Valley Road had 
generally been covered under the general category, Local Streets and Roads and Pavement Rehab, 
although Mr. Lochirco stated the Ygnacio Valley Road project, a $22 million project, was intended to be 
more than that, including Complete Streets.   
 
Mr. Noeimi stated the description should be changed, and suggested the pavement rehab part might 
need to be taken out to include only the cost for Complete Streets and sidewalks.   If a lesser total, the 
project might fit into the Financially Constrained List.  He verified with Mr. Lochirco the bike/ped 
component of each of the five projects could be included in No. 5, the catchall on the Committed List. 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 7 
 

On the continued discussion of the specific improvements planned for the five projects, he suggested 
that the Olympic Boulevard project was already covered; the Ygnacio Valley Road Rehabilitation would 
likely be cut and as a smaller project could fit within the Financially Constrained List, and he would like 
to add them all to that list assuming more local money on operational improvements from future 
developers or developer fees on the I-680/SR4 Interchange, with more near term projects.  He added 
that he would get more revised estimates from Mr. Lochirco and would try to fit the projects in.  
 
Mr. Lochirco added that part of the projects for Ygnacio Valley Road and Treat Boulevard were 
intended to help with technology and synchronization, and Mr. Noeimi suggested trying to squeeze in 
$10 million for the top two projects. 
 
Mr. Lochirco asked about the Vision List and raised the question of the widening of I-680 and 
reconstructing the Treat Boulevard/Lawrence Way Interchange, which he suggested should be a great 
regional project for the Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) discussion.  He suggested that CCTA 
would represent that project and should include it as a priority.   
 
Mr. Noeimi commented that the freeway would be widened for the HOV lanes.  He suggested adding 
the reconstruction of the entire interchange to the Vision List if it is part of the CSMP.  He recalled a 
project for operational improvements on I-680 between North Main Street and Treat Boulevard. 
 
Mr. Cunningham suggested that the West County Study and I-680 Study might need to be included on 
the TEP list as well for coordination purposes.  He also asked about the Olympic Corridor project which 
could be included in the programmatic category, and commented that there would be no practical loss 
if not named explicitly.  He suggested it would likely be a named project on the TEP and should be a 
named project for the RTP, even if just on the Vision List. 
 
For the TEP, Mr. Noeimi noted with the exception of few marquee projects, there was a desire for 
flexible descriptions with examples to be provided.  He advised that he would make the changes to the 
list pending the information requested from the City of Martinez, City of Concord, and the City of 
Walnut Creek, and present the amended list to the TRANSPAC Board at its July 9, 2015 meeting. 
 
M/S/U Kuzbari/Cunningham to forward the list to the TRANSPAC Board at its meeting on July 9, 2015. 
 
3. Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) Development.  At its special meeting on June 4, 2015, 

the TAC had also considered the TEP and the need to submit candidate projects and programs 
for consideration in the development of a draft Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) by July 
24, 2015.  The TAC is expected to refine a project list at this meeting for submittal to the 
TRANSPAC Board for approval at its meeting on July 9, 2015.  The list will be compiled at the 
meeting.  (Hisham Noeimi - CCTA Staff)  

 
Mr. Noeimi reported that the RTPCs had been asked for information given that the CCTA Board was 
considering another half-cent sales tax on the ballot.  A half-cent sales tax would overlap with Measure 
J, and start April 1, 2017 and expire on March 31, 2042.  He noted that Measure J had started in 2009 
and would expire in 2034.   



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 8 
 

There would be a period of 17 years where there would be a one cent sales tax.  Such a measure would 
generate $2.3 billion in constant dollars.  The TRANSPAC share would be $690 million, and the 
Expenditure Plan would need to remain within that number.  The CCTA was asking the RTPCs to advise 
what programs they would fund out of their share of the total and identify the funding levels desired 
for programs such as, return to source, bus operations, BART improvements, major streets, and the 
like.  He had suggested at the last meeting that members talk to their city managers, city engineers, 
and elected officials, and share that information at this meeting to identify the commonalities from all 
the cities.  If wanting an increased return to source, that would mean less money for transit and other 
elements.  He emphasized there was insufficient money to do everything.   
 
Mr. Hu advised that Ray Kuzbari had been tasked to conduct a preliminary analysis.  Mr. Kuzbari had 
contacted everyone to offer projects to compile, and had complied that information in a spreadsheet. 
 
Mr. Kuzbari explained that he had set up the spreadsheet similar to Measure J in projects and 
programs to start the conversation about the capital projects to put on the list for the new measure.  
He explained that one of the big assumptions was return to source and he had assumed 30 percent to 
start the conversation.  He noted that everything hinged on that element.  While the TRANSPAC Board 
would debate the return to source question, the TAC would have to propose something and he 
proposed starting with 30 percent return to source. 
 
Mr. Moreno stated that the Public Managers’ Association for Central County had come to an 
agreement that a new return to source should be a third to 50 percent of the measure.  He noted there 
had been some opposition to that total.  Several groups had proposed a much higher return to source 
than with the current Measure J.   
 
Mr. Lochirco commented that a number of electeds had suggested that 30 percent was too much. 
 
Mr. Noeimi explained that a spreadsheet had been created to show how much each city would get by 
percentage of return to source on an annual basis as well as how much was being generated by gas 
taxes to allow a comparison of the two.  He stated that the new measure and Measure J would most 
likely be more than what was currently generated by gas taxes.   
 
Mr. Tanner reported that BART was requesting $100 million for operational improvements for new 
trains, new cars, new parking and access, and a train control system at Central County stations in 
Contra Costa County.  The biggest component was for new cars to address the expected 20 to 25 
percent increase in service.   
 
Mr. Tucker commented that BART had between 10 and 12 percent of Measure J funds, which Mr. 
Tanner stated included eBART in East County.  He stated BART had $41 million in Measure J for BART 
Parking, Access, and Station Improvements. 
 
It was noted that BART might pursue its own tax measure.  TAC members suggested showing $10 
million for BART. 
 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 9 
 

Mr. Hu stated the TEP was not intended to be a replacement of Measure J.   
 
Mr. Moreno suggested it would take some time to identify projects and that generalities and not 
specific projects would likely be identified at this point.  He asked how it would all flow to the top and 
then be analyzed at the political level.   He wanted to understand the schedule and be able to work 
together within that schedule. 
 
Mr. Kuzbari clarified that the TAC had been tasked to put together a proposal for the July 9 TRANSPAC 
meeting, the projects recommended had to be as specific as possible, and an initial proposal was 
needed at this time, to be discussed with the TRANSPAC Board on July 9. 
 
Mr. Noeimi stated that the CCTA was seeking input from the RTPCs by July 24, 2015 to start the 
discussion.  Input was also being sought by EPAC and other Advisory Committees in the 
September/October timeframe.  Public input and workshops with elected officials and others would 
also influence how the final draft TEP would look. 
 
For the existing Expenditure Plan, Mr. Lochirco noted that a certain amount had been allocated to 
Central County, and based on Measure J there were some deficiencies in some of the line items given 
the greater need than what was currently being funded.  He liked the technology upgrades and 
suggested that would be a huge component to make the network run more efficiently and effectively.  
He suggested there was a need to see where the demographics were going given a significant uptick in 
bike and ped.  With respect to the line item for Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC), he 
suggested that TLC be evaluated further and the number be increased.  He added that Transportation 
for Seniors and People with Disabilities had a great demand that would only increase and suggested 
there had been some restrictions with the way the current Measure J had been worded that had been 
interpreted separately by CCTA.  He asked that a small portion of any new measure address 
administrative costs given the staff time involved in filling out grants or planning programs, and given 
that there was insufficient staff in many jurisdictions to be able to do the administrative work 
necessary to do or get the projects.  He supported something to help the local jurisdictions to 
administer the process. 
 
Mr. Tucker suggested that would lose votes.   
 
Mr. Kuzbari commented that return to source could be used for staff time including writing grant 
applications.   
 
Anne Muzzini explained that County Connection did not need transit improvements and express buses; 
its vision was to expand frequency on routes that fed BART, and the price tag to increase frequency on 
all routes that served BART in 15 minutes in transit areas and increase service was $9 million annually, 
or the buses to do it at $247 million plus the $40 million.  She verified with Mr. Kuzbari that TLC 
represented multi-modal improvements. 
 
Mr. Noeimi clarified that TLC related to capital projects; bus pads and bus stops, but not service. 
 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 10 
 

Mr. Cunningham suggested that Mr. Kuzbari’s proposal was a good starting point although he asked 
what would happen with the input.  He wanted to add the Olympic Corridor Trail Connector project to 
the list of capital projects.  He explained that bike/ped project/programs had been increasing 
nationwide and in the Bay Area.  He pointed out that Contra Costa County had the lowest bike/ped 
split in the Bay Area.  He recommended language to be added to the program for “strategic programs 
or prioritization on the bike/ped program to improve the bike split to make it the best in the Bay Area.”  
He recommended a strategic investment to improve that split.  To address that concern, he suggested 
“investments in this category will be strategically selected, programmed, and scheduled to increase the 
bike split in the county.” 
 
Mr. Lochirco stated that Local Streets Maintenance and Improvements sounded like just roads and 
suggested that the wording be changed to show improvements to local roads and Complete Streets.    
He noted that the ped, bike, and trail facilities line item was only intended to be supplemental and 
while he was in favor of giving the East Bay Regional Park District (EBRPD) funding to maintain its 
network, he suggested the local streets should be exploited and the category should be changed under 
local streets to show bike/ped as well.   
 
As to a change in the name of Local Street Maintenance and Improvements, Mr. Lochirco suggested 
“Local Street Maintenance and Multi-Modal Improvements.”   
 
Mr. Hu agreed and suggested it was a matter of marketing and the improvements involved would have 
to be better defined.   
 
On the discussion, it was noted that the Safe Routes to School (SR2S) program just completed had not 
been reflected in the recommended funding, especially if trying to appeal to the voter who might look 
for something specific about getting children to school safely. 
 
Mr. Hu suggested the way the categories were labeled would have to be clear to the voter.  He 
suggested separate categories such as SR2S, regional trails, bike/ped, and the like.   
 
Lynn Overcashier suggested that the $17 million be shown as Safe Transportation for Children. 
 
Mr. Cunningham recommended a narrative to explain the position.  With paratransit, he suggested it 
had more to do with management and oversight than the amount of money involved.   
When asked about mobility management, Ms. Muzzini explained the idea was to provide a mobility 
manager who had a more reasonable view of paratransit to consolidate some functions and fold in and 
work with the social service network of senior providers.  She stated there was no cost at this point; 
the work had just started, a Board had been identified but had yet to meet, and there was a 
requirement to provide Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)/paratransit service, which was being 
done now.  She suggested the line item was going to some ADA/transit service but there was a piece 
going to social service that had been sitting in a pot not spent.  She did not think that number needed 
to be that high.  She suggested it could be senior transportation or increased frequency on normal 
routes, which would likely resonate better with the voters. 
 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 11 
 

Mr. Lochirco stated that the travel training issue had been identified as a need.    
 
Mr. Cunningham suggested coming up with another name.  He stated that senior and disabled was 
important, but references to veterans would also be important. 
 
On the discussion, it was noted that “commute alternatives” was not as descriptive as it could be, 
although Ms. Overcashier explained that it was a catchall for alternative modes of transportation.  It 
was also recommended that the total for that item should be reduced from $17 million to $10 million. 
 
As to the level of funding for projects to be included on the list, Mr. Noeimi stated it would depend on 
what was needed; if the need was urgent for the project, 30 to 50 percent would have to be put into it 
from local funds; if there was a project with a longer term, 20 to 30 percent would work.  It was not 
expected that a project would be fully funded from one source. 
 
For I-680/SR4 improvements, Mr. Noeimi explained that no phases would be shown for the TEP to 
avoid confusion.  He noted that the project had a $386 million shortfall and if putting in 30 percent, 
$100 plus million would need to be shown.  He suggested that $50 million for the project was less than 
a third.   
 
Mr. Lochirco asked if Routes of Regional Significance should be included to capture some of the 
projects in the RTP.  He suggested the Treat Boulevard Overcrossing and the Olympic Boulevard 
Undercrossing should be included.  With respect to BART’s Access Study in Walnut Creek, he suggested 
beefing up the access component, adding something for BART parking and access improvements, and 
suggested there would be other improvements in local jurisdictions that could be beneficial if there 
were projects identified around the perimeter of BART where BART would have no control.  He 
recommended that the Comprehensive Transportation Project Listing (CTPL) be rolled into the TEP list.  
 
Mr. Kuzbari noted that the CTPL was almost infinite and he emphasized the need to focus on this list 
since there was always the opportunity to add more projects in the future as long as they were within 
the defined categories.   
 
Mr. Tucker stated that at some point ferry service would have to be included, and Mr. Noeimi 
suggested that should probably be added to the Vision List to allow MTC to evaluate it.   
 
Mr. Kuzbari suggested adding the Iron Horse connector to Willow Pass Road to the list. 
 
Mr. Lochirco recommended bike share as a subregional capital project that could be part of commute 
alternatives, and Ms. Overcashier stated that car share should also be added to the list under commute 
alternatives.   
 
Mr. Hu referred to Contra Costa Boulevard/Concord Avenue Interchange Improvements, and noted 
that some were Caltrans owned, such as the Target intersection, which needed to be completely 
redesigned.  The City of Pleasant Hill was looking to add an additional lane to make the traffic flow 
better.   



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 12 
 

Mr. Noeimi added a Contra Costa Boulevard/Concord Avenue Interchange Improvements project to 
the RTP Vision List.  He also recommended that Galindo Street improvements, which would be 
improvements on the surface corridor and not to the interchange, should be included under Major 
Streets.  There was also a need for a separate category for Ferry Service.  Under BART, a project to add 
new cars to the fleet was also included, as was a placeholder for Walnut Creek’s West Downtown 
Public Improvements. 
 
Mr. Lochirco recommended the addition of programs for Bike/Ped Regional Trails Enhancement and 
Maintenance. 
 
The TAC discussed the projects and the allocations at length.  In that process, the Lime Ridge Open 
Space Ped/Bike Trail at $2.5 million was deleted from the list.  The TAC wanted to make sure that the 
narrative to the Board was complete with the following: 
 

• Senior disabled transportation, additional funding needed for operational and management 
improvements; 

• The BART and EBRPD share of funding would require approval from the RTPC before spending 
funds; 

• For SR2S dollars, make sure that enforcement and funding of K-12 curriculum is eligible for 
funding; 

• The Master Plan number should be allocated to all RTPCs overall. 
 
When asked, Mr. Noeimi clarified that the text would be revised based on what people would 
understand and the pollster would offer in the final format. 
 
After the TAC had made the necessary changes to the text for potential capital project categories in 
Central County, the allocation of dollar amounts was modified and re-modified to create a balanced 
expenditure plan for a 2016 Ballot Measure TEP.  The TAC accepted the recommended changes to text 
and allocation, as follows: 
 
2016 Ballot Measure TEP       
Potential Capital Project Categories in Central County - TRANSPAC TAC PROPOSAL 

         
 

Funding Categories           $ 
millions Sponsor 

1 I-680/SR4/SR242 Corridor Congestion Relief/Traffic Smoothing 
  I-680/SR4 Interchange Improvements 60.0 CCTA 
  SR242/Clayton Road Off- and On-Ramps 17.7 CCTA 
  SR4 Operational Improvements 30.0 CCTA 
  CCB/Concord Avenue Interchange Improvements 24 CCTA 

SUBTOTAL 131.7   

           
2 Transit Corridor Improvements 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 13 
 

  I-680 Operational Improvements 15.0 CCTA 
SUBTOTAL 15.0   

           
3 BART Parking, Access and Other Improvements 
  Add New Cars to the Fleet 10.0 BART 

SUBTOTAL 10.0   
                    

4 Ferry Transportation 
  Ferry Service 8.0 County/Martinez 

SUBTOTAL 8.0   

           
5 Major Streets: Traffic Flow, Safety and Capacity improvements 

  Clayton Rd/Treat Blvd Intersection Capacity Improvements 1.0 Concord 
  Ygnacio Valley Rd Traffic Smoothing & Complete Streets 20.0 Concord 
  Concord Blvd Complete Streets for Pedestrian/Bike Safety 8.0 Concord 
  Willow Pass Rd Capacity and Complete Streets Improvements 5.0 Concord 
  Galindo Street Corridor Efficiency Improvements 4.4 Concord 
  Contra Costa Blvd Complete Streets Project - Phase 5 & 6  12.8 Pleasant Hill 
  Gregory Lane Complete Street Project 17.7 Pleasant Hill 
  Pleasant Hill Rd Complete Streets Project - Phase 2 & 3  16.6 Pleasant Hill 

  Olympic Corridor Bike/Trail Connector  11.7 County/Walnut 
Creek 

  West Downtown Public 
Improvements       24.0 Walnut Creek 

  Pacheco Blvd Widening 20.3 Martinez/County 
  Alhambra Avenue Widening 10.0 Martinez 

SUBTOTAL 151.5   

          
  TOTAL $316.2  

 



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 14 
 

 

         
           

4. 2016 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP):  The CCTA has released the Call for 
Projects for the 2016 STIP on May 20, 2015.  Applications are due on July 17, 2015.  Between 
$10 million and $20 million is expected to be available for capital projects in FY 2019-20 and FY 
2020-21.  Project sponsors are requested to seek concurrence from their respective Regional 
Transportation Planning Committees (RTPCs) as part of the application process.  The City of 
Concord has proposed that CCTA submit a STIP application for SR4 Operational Improvements 
in the amount of $5 million for design.  (Hisham Noeimi - CCTA Staff)  

 
Mr. Noeimi reported that two applications had been submitted; one from the City of Concord in an 
estimated amount of $5 million, and one from the City of Pleasant Hill for a Contra Costa Boulevard 
project in an estimated amount of $5 million.  The two projects, descriptions to be provided, would be 
submitted to the TRANSPAC Board with a recommendation for approval.   

 
5. Update on the Status of the Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Technical Assistance Program.  On 

March 12, 2015, the TRANSPAC Board approved a list of school-related projects that had been 
recommended by the TRANSPAC TAC, and forwarded the list to the CCTA for funding.  An 
update on the status of the Technical Assistance Program to local jurisdictions is being 
conducted by Fehr & Peers as part of the Contra Costa SR2S Program. (Continued from the 
Special TAC Meeting on June 4, 2015). 

 

$ millions

1 206.1

2 20.0

3 24.7

4 10.8

5 57.9

6 21.3

7 20.0

8 10.0

370.7

2016 Ballot Measure TEP

Funding Categories

Local Streets Maintenance & Multi-Modal Improvements (Vehicle, Bike, Ped & Transit)

Transportation for Livable Communities (Bike, Ped & Transit Enhancements)

Technology Upgrades

Potential Programs in Central County - TRANSPAC TAC PROPOSAL

Safe Routes to Schools

Increased Transit Bus Frequency to BART

Transportation for Senior & People with Disabilities

Bike/ped regional trails enhancement and maintenance

Commute Alternatives

$686.9

TOTAL

GRAND TOTAL 
(Capital Project Categories & Programs)

$686.9

Central County 
Funding Target



TRANSPAC TAC Summary Minutes – June 25, 2015  Page 15 
 

6. Continuing Discussion of the Budget and the Maintenance of the Pacheco Transit Hub 
(Continued from the Special TAC Meeting on June 4, 2015). 

 
Given the hour, the two items were again continued to the next TAC meeting. 
 
7. Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:05 P.M.  The next meeting of the TAC, to be hosted by the City of 
Walnut Creek, is scheduled for July 23, 2015 at 9:00 A.M. in the City of Pleasant Hill Community Room 
unless otherwise determined. 
 



TRANSPAC TAC staff  report FY 2016/17  511 Contra Costa funding 
  1  

 

TO:     TRANSPAC TAC 

FROM:  Lynn Overcashier, 511 Contra Costa Program Manager 

DATE: September 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Seeking approval and authorization from TRANSPAC to execute a Master 

Cooperative Agreement between TRANSPAC/City of Pleasant Hill, the Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District, and the Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority for the FY 2016/17 TRANSPAC/TRANSPLAN 511 Contra Costa 
Program, with 2016/17 funding allocations from the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (TFCA) and CCTA Measure J (line 17 and 21a) 

 

The Central/East County 511 Contra Costa staff implements programs that fulfill each 
jurisdiction’s Transportation Demand Management ordinance, Growth Management Program 
and Action Plan requirements under Measure J. With legislation (AB 32 and SB 375) requiring 
greenhouse gas emission (GHG) reductions, the 511 Contra Costa programs have a proven 
success record with the Bay Area Air Quality Management District and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission in reducing vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and GHG emissions.  

The Workplan for FY 2016/17 includes trip reduction and emissions reduction programs that 
focus on outreach to residents, students and commuters in Contra Costa. The program 
elements are refined and changed each year to ensure the maximum cost effectiveness, as 
determined by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD).   

Program elements include: 

• ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTATION - Both the TRANSPAC and TRANSPLAN 
Action Plans include actions and programs that are implemented by the 
Central/East County 511 Contra Costa Program.  

• YOUTH/SCHOOLS PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS - Staff will seek ongoing 
funding to continue to work with local jurisdictions, school administrators, parents, 
CHP/police departments and others to expand the school-based programs to 
elementary, middle and high schools. The Street Smarts Diablo program includes 



TRANSPAC TAC staff  report FY 2016/17  511 Contra Costa funding 
  2  

bicycle/pedestrian education and encouragement; safety assemblies; Challenge 
Days to promote bicycling, walking, carpooling and transit ridership to schools; 
school site assessments and minor site access safety programs. The SchoolPool 
program offers County Connection and Tri Delta passes to students at the 
beginning of the school year. Staff will seek funding to support the Summer Youth 
Pass and District V Youth Summit from available sources.  

• ELECTRIC CHARGING PROGRAM - Provides mini grants and staff support to 
Central and East County jurisdictions for electric charging station installations. Staff 
will inform local staff of additional funding sources as they become available.    

• EMPLOYER OUTREACH – Services include elements that reduce single occupant 
vehicles commuting to worksites, including: transportation survey analysis; car-
sharing programs; clean fuel infrastructure; transportation/health fairs; shuttles; 
customized ridematch assistance; pre-tax transit benefit education and pledge 
programs to encourage commute alternatives. Staff will also continue to work with 
transit agencies on special promotions. 

• COMMUNITY OUTREACH PROGRAM – Staff works with local jurisdictions to 
distribute more “green” transportation information and program elements through city 
newsletters, libraries and other city events to inform residents of ways to reduce 
Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) and GHG emissions. 

• BICYCLE/SKATEBOARD INFRASTRUCTURE  – Bicycle and skateboard parking 
infrastructure will be provided to local schools, jurisdictions, and employers as funds 
are available.   

• WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE - The 511CC website continues 
to be a comprehensive one-stop location for Bay Area transportation information 
with an emphasis on Contra Costa transportation.   

• AGENCY PARTNERSHIP ACTIVITIES - Staff participates in local, regional and 
national committees to ensure coordination, promotion and funding for TDM 
activities in Contra Costa County. These include: MTC’s Regional Rideshare TAC, 
BTWD TAC, MTC’s School and Youth Outreach TAC, MTC 511 TAC; CCTA Safe 
Routes to School Task Force, CCTA Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 

• ASSISTANCE WITH GRANT APPLICATION DEVELOPMENT - Staff provides 
assistance to partner agencies for grant submittals. 

Funding is to be similar to FY 2015/16, with FY 2016/17 fund allocations expected to be 
approximately $770,000+/- TFCA, $431,000+/- Measure J Commute Alternative funds and 
$375,000+/- Measure J Safe Transportation for Children funds.   

 







 
 
 
 
 
---------------- 

 

 
City of Martinez        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
  525 Henrietta Street, Martinez, CA 94553-2394 
 

 
Date:  September 17, 2015 
 
To:  TRANSPAC 
   
From:  Tim Tucker, City Engineer 
 
Subject: Pacheco Transit Hub 
 

 
Action: 
Authorize reimbursement to the City of Martinez for the Pacheco Transit Hub in the amount of $5,906.69 
 
Discussion: 
The Pacheco Transit Hub has been in open since August of 2013.  The facility is comprised of a park and ride 
lot and bus transit hub area.  Charging stations were installed at the request of TRANSPAC.  The City of 
Martinez agreed to be the Project Manager both in the bidding and construction phase and after construction.  
TRANSPAC has made a commitment to fund 50% of the maintenance cost, up to $10,000.  The remaining 
funding was to come from TRANSPLAN and the transit agencies (25% up to $5,000).  Martinez has submitted 
an invoice to CCTA for maintenance and utility costs.  The City of Martinez request TRANSPAC allocate funds to 
pay their fair share of maintenance costs.  The total cost for maintenance last fiscal year was $11,813.39.  
TRANSPAC’s share is $5,906.60.   
 
With increased use of the charging stations it is anticipated electricity costs to increase significantly next year.  
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

































































































































































File: Transportation > Committees > CCTA > Transpac and Transpac TAC > 2015  
c:\users\jwcunning\dropbox\rtpc agendas, etc\transpac\tac\20a grant discussion.docx 
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Members, TRANSPAC TAC  
 

FROM: John Cunningham, Principal Planner 
   

DATE: September 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Line 20a Grant Issues: 1) Distribution of DRAFT Program Documents, and 2) Review and 

Approval of City of Walnut Creek 20a Grant Funding 
 
Background 
At the September 10, 2015 meeting the TRANSPAC Board: 
1. Authorized the TAC to distribute the Draft Line 20a (Additional Transportation Services for Seniors 

and People with Disabilities) Call for Projects to interested parties for review and comment. The 
Committee considered and supported the input from the TAC to “cast a wide net” in getting feedback 
on the program. 

2. Authorized disbursement of Line 20a Grant Funding to four existing 20a recipients.  
3. Related to the above items, received a general report from staff on the status and history of Line 20a 

Funding. Included in this report was an acknowledgement that the City of Walnut Creek’s 20a request 
was inadvertently omitted from the 20a Grant disbursements. Staff indicated that the TAC would 
review the request and return to TRANSPAC with a recommendation.  

 
Recommendations 
1) Recommend approval to TRANSPAC continued funding for the City of Walnut Creek’s “City of 

Walnut Creek: Senior Bus Operation” program.  
2) Consistent with the previous intent to “cast a wide net”, the TAC should provide input on distribution 

of the Draft Line 20a grant documents including identifying specific organizations and approving a 
final distribution list.  

 
Discussion 
DRAFT 20a Grant Program: The distribution list for the 20a program is as follows:  
  

1. Existing Line 20a recipients, past applicants, and known interested parties 
2. Advisory Council on Aging/Senior Mobility Action Council 
3. Paratransit Coordinating Council 

 
The TAC is requested to provide suggestions as to additional organizations to distribute the request for 
comment to.  
 
Walnut Creek Senior Bus Operation: Information regarding the City of Walnut Creek’s 20a request 
will be distributed to the TAC prior to the meeting date. However, prior years reporting information is 
attached for the TAC’s consideration. The understanding of staff is that the upcoming 20a request will 
fund operations that are similar, if not identical, to past year’s operations.  

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
Department of Conservation & Development 
30 Muir Road 
Martinez, CA  94553-4601 
Telephone: 674-7209 Fax: 674-7250 



 

File: Transportation > Committees > CCTA > Transpac and Transpac TAC > 2015  
c:\users\jwcunning\dropbox\rtpc agendas, etc\transpac\tac\request for commments- transpac draft 20a program.docx 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Interested Parties: TRANSPAC Draft Grant Guidelines for Additional Transportation  
  Services for Seniors and People with Disabilities 
 

FROM: TRANSPAC TAC 
     

DATE: September 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Request for Review and Comment: DRAFT Line 20a Grant Call for Projects 
 
Background 
TRANSPAC is the Regional Transportation Planning Committee (RTPC) for Central Contra Costa. It is 
composed of elected representatives, planning commissioners and staff from the six Central Contra Costa 
jurisdictions including the cities of Clayton, Concord, Martinez, Pleasant Hill, Walnut Creek and the 
unincorporated area of Central Contra Costa County. TRANSPAC is responsible for the development of 
transportation plans, projects and programs for the Central County.  
 
Included in that responsibility is the oversight of the program in the Measure J Transportation Sales Tax 
Expenditure Plan, Program 20a: Additional Transportation Services for Seniors and People & 
Disabilities. Countywide, the Measure J Transportation sales tax funds are managed by the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority. This is additional 20a funding is exclusive to the TRANSPAC area on top of 
the the countywide program of the same name. The program name self-describes the activities that the 
program funds. An excerpt from the Measure J Expenditure Plan is attached which fully describes the 
intent and eligibility of the program.  
 
Request For Comments 
TRANSPAC is requesting the review and comment on these draft documents from potential grantees, or 
other interested parties. Please provide comment back to the TRANSPAC TAC by October ##, 2015. 
Send your comments to: 
 
TRANSPAC TAC c/o 
Anita L. Tucci-Smith 
tuccismith@sbcglobal.net 
 
Included in this request are the following documents: 
1. Call for Projects/Grant Application 
2. 20a Grant Report 
 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
Department of Conservation & Development 
30 Muir Road 
Martinez, CA  94553-4601 
Telephone: 674-7209 Fax: 674-7250 

To be placed on TRANSPAC Letterhead



c:\users\jwcunning\dropbox\temp\20a funding\transpac draft 20a call for projects and report 
2015.docxg:\transportation\committees\transpac\20a funding\transpac draft 20a call for projects 
2015.docx 

Draft 

Pilot Call for Projects 

TRANSPAC Measure J Line 20a Funds 

Additional Transportation Services for Seniors and People with Disabilities 
 

1. TRANSPAC,  the  Regional  Transportation  Planning  Committee  for  Central  Contra  Costa  is 

issuing a pilot Call for Projects for Line 20a funds "Additional Transportation Services for Seniors 

& People with Disabilities" funded through the Measure J Transportation Sales Tax Expenditure 

Plan  approved  by  Contra  Costa  voters  in  2004.  This  Call  for  Projects  is  intended  to  address 

current  needs  while  TRANSPAC  develops  a  formal  policy  to  govern  the  allocation  of  these 

Measure J funds for future years. This policy is anticipated to be adopted by TRANSPAC within 

12 months. 

 

2. Funds  will  generally  be  used  in  support  of  transportation  services  and  related  capital 

expenditures for seniors and people with disabilities provided by TRANSPAC jurisdictions, public 

and private non‐profit agencies operating in the TRANSPAC area (map attached). Funds must be 

spent  in a manner consistent with Measure  J Program 15 Transportation  for Seniors & People 

With Disabilities. 
 

          

3. According to Measure  J,  in years when revenues have declined  from the previous year,  funds 

may be used  for  supplemental, existing, additional or modified  service  for  seniors and people 

with disabilities; in years where funding allows for growth in service levels, these funds would be 

used for service enhancements for seniors and people with disabilities and if funding levels are 

restored  to 2008  levels,  these  funds  shall be used  to enhance  services  for  seniors and people 

with  disabilities.  TRANSPAC  will  determine  if  the  use  of  funds  proposed  by  operators  meets 

these guidelines for the allocation of these funds.   

                                                           

4. Eligible  Applicants:    TRANSPAC  jurisdictions,  public  non‐profit  and  private  non‐profit 

transportation  service  agencies,  duly  designated  by  the  State  of  California  and  operating  in 

TRANSPAC  area  in  Central  Contra  Costa  may  submit  application(s)  for  operating  funds  for 

transportation  services  and/or  capital  funding  projects  necessary  to  continue  and/or  support 

existing  services  for  twelve  (12)  months.  Transportation  services  and  projects  must  directly 

benefit  seniors  and  disabled  residents  of  Central  Contra  Costa  (Clayton,  Concord,  Martinez, 

Pleasant  Hill,  Walnut  Creek,  and  Unincorporated  Central  Contra  Costa  County).  Please  see 

attached map. 

 
 

5. Funding Available: The total funding available in this Call for Projects is $###,###. No matching 

funds are required. 

6. Evaluation Criteria:  



2 
 

The final grant application will include ranking using the following criteria: 

 

 

 

7. Applications: Applicants are required to complete the attached application form and may attach 

additional  information  in  support  of  the  application.  The  TRANSPAC  TAC  and  Contra  Costa 

Transportation Authority (CCTA) staff will evaluate applications and make recommendations to 

TRANSPAC  for  review.  TRANSPAC  will  make  funding  recommendations  to  CCTA  and  request 

allocation action(s). 

 

a. Applications  should  be  emailed, mailed  or  hand  delivered  to: Marilyn  Carter,  TRANSPAC, 

2300        Contra  Costa  Boulevard,  Ste.  360,  Pleasant Hill,  CA  94523.  Applications must  be 

received by #:## pm on ##/##/####. 

 

b. An electronic copy of the application is available by email. Please contact Marilyn Carter at 

mcarter@5ll contracosta.org for the electronic version. Submit two electronic copies of the 

application: one in Word format and one in a PDF format to: mcmter@511 contracosta.org.                          

 

c. Faxed applications and late applications will not be accepted. 

 

8. Contra Costa Transportation Authority Allocation Process 

Execution  of  a  Cooperative  Funding  Agreement:  Successful  applicants  will  be  required  to 

execute  a  Cooperative  Funding  Agreement  with  the  CCTA  and  comply  with  all  of  its 

requirements, including, but not limited to, audits, compliance with the Measure J Expenditure 

Plan  as  it  pertains  to  the  project,  insurance,  indemnification,  and  reporting.  A  sample 

Cooperative Agreement is attached to this application. 

9. Expenditure of Funds: 

a. Pursuant  to  CCTA  policies  and  procedures  established  in  the  Cooperative  Funding 

Agreement referenced above, project sponsors will be reimbursed for eligible, documented 

expenses  pursuant  to  the  approved  program/project  budget  and  scope,  schedule  and/or 

project description. 

 

b. Approved funds may be expended as of the first day of the first month after the Cooperative 

Agreement is executed and must cease exactly one year later. 

 

c. Reimbursement for expended funds may be sought at any time during the two years after 

the Cooperative Agreement is executed but not more frequently than once a month. 

  9.   Reports  to TRANSPAC and the Contra Costa Transportation Authority:  First year, and second 

year  grantees will  be  required  to  report on a quarterly basis  to  TRANSPAC and/or  the Contra 



3 
 

Costa  Transportation  Authority  on  the  transportation  services  and  related  capital  projects 

funded through this Call for Projects. If first and second year grantees are awarded subsequent 

funding,  the  reporting  requirements  is  [annually?biannually?].reduced  to  annual  (contingent 

upon no identified issues in prior reports).    

   



4 
 

TRANSPAC 
Transportation Partnership and Cooperation 

2300 Contra Costa Blvd., Suite 360  

Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 

(925)969‐0841 

 

APPLICATION INFORMATION     

Name of Agency 
   

Primary Contact Name 
   

Street Address 
   

City, State, Zip 
   

Fax  Phone  Email Address 

SIGNATURE     

I certify that the information contained in this application is true and complete to the best of my knowledge.     

Signature of Responsible Party1                                                        Date 
   

     
If Is this a request for continuing 
or  expanding  existing  service 
funded by 20a?  If    then provide: 
the  date  of  first  disbursement, 
and prior year reports.  

 

   

Service area boundaries   

   

Days and hours of operation   
   

 
Estimated  Number  of  trips 
provided daily and/or monthly 

 
   

Number  of  persons  served  in 
Central  Contra  Costa  (Clayton, 
Concord,  Martinez,  Pleasant  Hill, 
Walnut Creek, and Unincorporated 
Central Contra Costa County 

 

   

                                                            
1 First year nongovernmental grantees must have their Board of Directors authorize or approve the grant. 
Authority for subsequent grant applications and reporting may be delegated to the agency executive officer.  

APPLICATION 
Call for Projects 

TRANSPAC Measure J Line 20a Funds 
Additional Transportation Services for 
Seniors and People with Disabilities 



5 
 

DESCRIPTION OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES FOR WHICH FUNDING IS SOUGHT       

Operations: Description of transportation services for which funding is sought:       

Name and type of service   

   

Purpose/goal   

   

Description of service(s) to be 
provided 

 

   

Estimated Number of persons to 
be served 

 

   

Coordination: Describe any 
efforts to coordinate services or 
other resources with other 
transportation providers or 
mobility management.  

 

   

Estimated number of monthly 
trips 

 

   

Description of types of 
destinations 

 

   

Schedule including expected 
initiation of service and expected 
duration of services to be 
provided 

 

   

Proposed budget: TRANSPAC 
Measure J funds request and any 
other funds expected or planned 
to be used in conjunction with 
Line 20a Funds 
 

 

   



6 
 

Describe the benefit of the 
proposed services to the public 
and or the public transportation 
system 

 

   

Capital Projects: Description of related capital project(s) for which funding is sought:   
   

Name of Project   

   

Purpose /Goal of Project   

   

Project Description: purpose, 
type, location 

 

   

Project Budget: Amount 
requested and any other funds 
expected or planned to be used 
to fully fund the project 

 

   

Project Schedule: Project 
implementation including 
milestones, equipment and 
other types of acquisitions 

 

   

Describe the benefits of the 
proposed project to the general 
public and/or the public 
transportation system 

 

   

MAP OF SERVICE AREA   
   

 
Describe AND attach a map of 
your service area. Services must 
be provided in Central Contra 
Costa (Clayton, Concord, 
Martinez, Pleasant Hill, Walnut 
Creek, Unincorporated Central 
Contra Costa County) 

 

   

 

   



7 
 

TRANSPAC 20A Grant Report2 

Name of Agency 

Primary Contact Name 

Street Address 

City, State, Zip 

Phone  Email: 

Date of Grant:  Amount of Grant: 

SIGNATURE     

I certify that the information contained in this report is true and complete to the best of my knowledge.     

Signature of Responsible Party                                                        Date 
   

Reporting Data and Backup [TAC to Discuss]     

1. Summary of activities/services/impact made possible by grant funds: Comprehensive 
information should be provided that is understandable and informative to both the general 
public and policymakers.  

2. Cost Per Trip: Cost per trip should include current grant activities and as well as any past grant 
activities. Due to the diversity in grant recipients, programs, and client characteristics, this 
information will largely be used to track internal trip efficiency. This as opposed to comparing 
different recipients which may not be accurate or relevant.  

3. Estimated Cost Savings per Trip Relative to LINK: 
4. Trip Characteristics: 

a. Describe the provision of any services that are Aabove and beyond ADA requirements? 
b. Are trips eligible for ADA paratransit? Provide  
c. # of shared trips 
d. Common Destinations 
e. Day/Time trip breakdown: Mon‐Friday? AM? PM? Weekends? 
f. Trip Geography: Do trips cross transit service areas? RTPC boundaries?   

5. Program Characteristics: 
a. Current capacity 
b. Waitlist status and/or other program needs, barriers, etc. 
c. Fleet description 
d. Driver training description 

6. First and Second Year Grantees, please attach drivers log or other substantiation of trips/routes. 
Subsequent year grantees must retain records for # years.  

7. Please attach documentation of capital purchases. 
7.8. Please describe any coordination activities with other transportation providers or mobility 

                                                            
2 To be filed as follows: First and Second Year Grantees must file quarterly. Subsequent year grantees to file 
reports [annually?biannually?]annually contingent upon prior reports having no identified issues.  



8 
 

management function.   

 



6 
 

Describe the benefit of the 
proposed services to the public 
and or the public transportation 
system 

 

   

Capital Projects: Description of related capital project(s) for which funding is sought:   
   

Name of Project   

   

Purpose /Goal of Project   

   

Project Description: purpose, 
type, location 

 

   

Project Budget: Amount 
requested and any other funds 
expected or planned to be used 
to fully fund the project 

 

   

Project Schedule: Project 
implementation including 
milestones, equipment and 
other types of acquisitions 

 

   

Describe the benefits of the 
proposed project to the general 
public and/or the public 
transportation system 

 

   

MAP OF SERVICE AREA   
   

 
Describe AND attach a map of 
your service area. Services must 
be provided in Central Contra 
Costa (Clayton, Concord, 
Martinez, Pleasant Hill, Walnut 
Creek, Unincorporated Central 
Contra Costa County) 

 

   

 

   



7 
 

TRANSPAC 20A Grant Report2 

Name of Agency 

Primary Contact Name 

Street Address 

City, State, Zip 

Phone  Email: 

Date of Grant:  Amount of Grant: 

SIGNATURE     

I certify that the information contained in this report is true and complete to the best of my knowledge.     

Signature of Responsible Party                                                        Date 
   

Reporting Data and Backup      

1. Summary of activities/services/impact made possible by grant funds: Comprehensive 
information should be provided that is understandable and informative to both the general 
public and policymakers.  

2. Cost Per Trip: Cost per trip should include current grant activities and as well as any past grant 
activities. Due to the diversity in grant recipients, programs, and client characteristics, this 
information will largely be used to track internal trip efficiency. This as opposed to comparing 
different recipients which may not be accurate or relevant.  

3. Estimated Cost Savings per Trip Relative to LINK: 
4. Trip Characteristics: 

a. Describe the provision of any services that are above and beyond ADA requirements? 
b. Are trips eligible for ADA paratransit? Provide  
c. # of shared trips 
d. Common Destinations 
e. Day/Time trip breakdown: Mon‐Friday? AM? PM? Weekends? 
f. Trip Geography: Do trips cross transit service areas? RTPC boundaries?   

5. Program Characteristics: 
a. Current capacity 
b. Waitlist status and/or other program needs, barriers, etc. 
c. Fleet description 
d. Driver training description 

6. First and Second Year Grantees, please attach drivers log or other substantiation of trips/routes. 
Subsequent year grantees must retain records for # years.  

7. Please attach documentation of capital purchases. 
8. Please describe any coordination activities with other transportation providers or mobility 

                                                            
2 To be filed as follows: First and Second Year Grantees must file quarterly. Subsequent year grantees to file 
reports annually contingent upon prior reports having no identified issues.  

Deleted: 

Formatte

Formatte

Dele

Deleted: 



Walnut Senior Club Mini Bus Program Overview 

October 1,2010 

Background 

The Walnut Creek Senior Club Mini Bus Program is a long-standing transpOliation 
program operating within the city limits of Walnut Creek serving age fifty-and-over 
adults who do not drive and need transportation to destinations and activities that are part 
of a traditional retirement lifestyle. 

Recognizing access to transportation to be essential to mobility, independence and life 
satisfaction, the City of Walnut Creek developed the Mini Bus program in 1977 at the 
suggestion of then Senior Recreation Supervisor Dolores LendlUm. For thirty-three 
years, The Walnut Creek Mini Bus Program has served the community by utilizing one 
multi-passenger van provided by the City and volunteers fi'om the community at large 
who schedule and drive the van. The program is cUiTently managed by a City Recreation 
Program Coordinator. 

Operations and Equipment 

Currently, the Program uses one seven-passenger mini van requiring a driver with a 
traditional Class C California driver's license. In years past, the Mini Bus Program has 
used larger (11-14) multi-passenger vans requiring the drivers to obtain a Class B drivers 
license. A Class B license is a commercial license and finding volunteers willing to 
obtain a Class B license became problematic. As a result, as the larger van was rotated 
out ofthe program it was replaced with a smaller, family van. 

Mini Bus Service is available Monday through Friday between the hours of 9am to 11 :30 
am and Ipm to 3:30 pm. Traditionally, drivers are assigned to either a morning or 
afternoon shift. Occasionally drivers will drive a full day. CUiTently there are 10 regular 
drivers and 3 substitute drivers serving the program. In addition, there are 5 volunteer 
schedulers, one per day, who take requests for transportation and schedule the rides. 

Passengers are allowed to schedule rides by calling in one day before they require 
transportation. In the case of medical appointments, they may call in two days prior. 
Riders are allowed to be transpOlied to one destination with a return trip per day. 
Multiple destinations are not allowed for the same person on the same day. 

Rides are scheduled at twenty minute intervals beginning at 9am in the morning with the 
last pick-up being no later than II :30 am. Afternoon rides begin at 1 pm with the last 
pick-up being no later than 3:30pm. When possible, riders are asked to adjust their 
schedules to so drivers can avoid multiple cross town trips in succession. Drivers may 

6-3 



6-4 

find themselves driving participants from Rossmoor to Citrus Circle, or the Rudgear area 
to Palos Verdes Mall on the Walnut Creek-Pleasant Hill-Lafayette border on any given 
day, with smaller trips in between. 

Requests for rides fall into three groups: medical appointments (50%), elTands (25%) and 
coming to the Senior Club (25%). These amounts are approximations as no formal data 
exist tracking past usage. The transpOliation requests are predominately round trip 
excursions. 

With the exception of Wednesdays, an average week would reflect trips to 3 or 4 medical 
clinics per day, resulting in approximately 15-20 round trips for medical appointments. 
Wednesday is devoted primarily to transporting volunteers (10) to the Senior Club at the 
Civic Park Community Center and home again. Two additional volunteers are scheduled 
on other days for round trip transpOliation. Volunteers are brought to the Club so that 
they can provide volunteer services essential for the continuation of the programs. 

The following data reflects the degree to which the program is utilized: 

In 2006 the Mini Bus Program served 3,223 passengers and drove 16,642 miles 
In 2007 the Mini Bus Program served 2,778 passel)gers 
In 2008 the Mini Bus Program served 3,060 passengers and drove 14,742 miles 
In 2009 the Mini Bus Program served 3,294 passengers and drove 16,692 miles 

Financial Impact 

Since its inception, the cost of the vehicle used by the Mini Bus Program has been 
undelwritten by the City of Walnut Creek. The current Social Services program (354) 
budget includes $9,400 for vehicle maintenance and $2,600 for vehicle replacement. 

Staff time has been used to supervise the program and provide driving and staffing 
suppOli in the absence of volunteers. A volunteer coordinator is being recruited to take 
on the role of overseeing the volunteers for both scheduling and driving, reducing staff 
involvement to a supervisory level, removing the hands-on component by staff. 

Currently, there is a one-way fee to ride the Mini Bus. In January 2005 the cost to ride 
the mini bus was raised from fifty cents to one dollar each way. The fifty cent fee had 
been in effecrsince at least 1996 when the current Program Coordinator (staff) for the 
program was hired. Currently, revenues generated fl:om Mini Bus rides go to the Walnut 
Creek Senior Club. Future Mini Bus revenues will be redirected to the City of Walnut 
Creek to offset the amount of funding currently budgeted by the City to maintain the 
program. A fee increase to $3 dollars each way for ridership is also planned no later than 
January 2011. Volunteers traveling to and from the Club cU1Tently ride for free. It is 
expected that volunteers will be required to pay a fee beginning no later than January 
2011. 

Revenue generated in recent years: 



2006: $1,557 
2007: $1,477 
2008: $1,408 
2009: $1,232 

If one compares ridership with revenue generation, there is a discrepancy between 
ridership and fees collected. This discrepancy is attributed to individual driver's 
occasional reluctance to ask for payment not readily offered, as well as economic 
limitations for some of the riders. 

In the past, when there was a stronger economy, this discrepancy was not considered a 
problem. In light of current economic circumstances, passengers will be notified of the 
fee requirements and drivers will be instlUcted to be diligent in their collection activities. 

6-5 



6-6 

City of Walnut Creek Mini Bus Program - 2010/11 Data 

Program Expenses 

Budget Item 
Vehicle Maintenance 
Vehicle Replacement 
Total Annual Cost' 

One-way Ridership 

Year 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
Average 

Current Annual Revenues 

@ $1 per one-way ride" 

Current City Subsidy 

Direct expenses less current revenues 

Share of Cost 
$9,635 
$2,598 
$12,233 

Riders 
3223 
2778 
3060 
3294 
3089 

$3,089 

$9,144 

* Based on th", Mini Bus program's estimated share of the 2010-11 City budget, excluding any staff overhead 
"Assuming average annual ridership 



8 
 

management function.   

 



File: Transportation > Committees > CCTA > Transpac and Transpac TAC > 2015  
c:\users\jwcunning\dropbox\rtpc agendas, etc\transpac\tac\transpac_tac_committee structure.docx 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Members, TRANSPAC TAC  
 

FROM: John Cunningham, Principal Planner 
   

DATE: September 15, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion: Regional Transportation Planning Committee Structure  
 
Background 
At their September 10, 2015 meeting the TRANSPAC Board requested that the TAC 
examine different committee structures and provide feedback to the Committee. This 
request was a result of the dialog regarding the transitional phase of the Committee after 
the departure of the Executive Director and other organizational changes.   
 
Recommendation 
None, this information is for discussion purposes. 
 
Discussion 
The table below is a summary of the various committee models in use in the County and is 
provided to start the discussion per the direction of the Committee.  
 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
Department of Conservation & Development 
30 Muir Road 
Martinez, CA  94553-4601 
Telephone: 674-7209 Fax: 674-7250 



File: Transportation > Committees > CCTA > Transpac and Transpac TAC > 2015  
c:\users\jwcunning\dropbox\rtpc agendas, etc\transpac\tac\transpac_tac_committee structure.docx 
 

 
Committee Staff Arrangement Pros Cons Budget 

SWAT Contract w/Member Jurisdiction 
Staff.  
 
Occasional RFP released for the role.  

• Lower cost 
• Staff has an 
understanding of issues, 
assignments, etc. from a 
local agency perspective 

• Perception/ 
potential for conflict 
of interest 

Annual: FY 15/16 
$33,125 

TRANSPLAN Staffed by Contra Costa County. 
 
This arrangement was established in the 
original joint powers adopted in 1991.  

• Lower cost 
• Consistent staffing 
• Staff has an 
understanding of issues, 
assignments, etc. from a 
local agency perspective 

• Perception 
/potential for 
conflict of interest 

Annual: FY 15/16 
$35,944 
 

TVTC* Staffed by TAC members. 
 
Rotates biennially between member 
jurisdictions. 

• No RTPC dues • Inconsistent 
staffing.  
• Perception/ 
potential for conflict 
of interest 

Annual: FY 15/16 
$121,603 

WCCTAC Executive Director reporting to the 
WCCTAC Board. 
 
WCCTAC has staff in addition to the 
Executive Director: 
• Program Managers (2) 
• TDM Manager (1) 
• Administrative Clerk (1) 

• Independent advocate 
for WCCTAC interests.  
• Additional staffing 
enables WCCTAC to take 
on independent studies 
and planning efforts 
• Staff attention is solely 
on WCCTAC interests. 

• Highest Cost Annual: FY 15/16 
$2,659,143 

 
* TVTC is dissimilar to the other RTPCs, 1) membership also includes Alameda County jurisdictions, 2) the Tri Valley 
Development Fee funds certain Committee activities, and 3) the Contra Costa members are also members of SWAT. 
 
 
 


	02523f9f-6890-43d4-819e-05ad5ad65e13.pdf
	fd10ec88-ea42-43f6-99e8-9a10b33c626d.pdf
	6f09421c-c55d-48ad-8c03-31a86c00dd14.pdf
	TO:     TRANSPAC TAC
	FROM:  Lynn Overcashier, 511 Contra Costa Program Manager
	DATE: September 24, 2015

	04-Transpac fy 14-15 and ytd 15-16.pdf
	92613d90-a261-4a1f-9ae9-6df6801ddc35.pdf
	From:  Tim Tucker, City Engineer

	06-CCTA Billing, Martinez Transit Hub FY 2014-15.pdf
	07-20a Grant Issues Sept TRANSPAC TAC.pdf
	08-TRANSPAC_TAC_Committee Structure.pdf

